
 

 

 

 

Special Meeting Agenda 
1. Call to Order/Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Consent Agenda 

i. January 02, 2024, Regular Meeting Minutes 

ii. January 16, 2024, Special Meeting Minutes 

iii. January 16, 2024, Work Session Minutes 

3. Discussion/Action on Marshville Procurement Policy 

4. Adjournment 

 

Work Session Agenda 
1. Public Comments 

2. Adoption of the Agenda 

3. Water and Sewer Presentation 

4. Financial Snapshot 

5. Discussion on the Sidewalk Project 

6. Manager’s Comments 

7. Council Comments 

8. Mayor’s Comments 

9. Adjournment 

Town Council Regular Meeting March 4th. 7 p.m. ● Planning Board Meeting March 11th. 7 p.m. ● 
Town Council Work Session March 18th 7 p.m.  ● Easter Evening of Fun March 21-22nd 6-9 p.m.  

Town of Marshville 
Town Council Special Meeting and Work Session 

February 19, 2024, 7 PM 
Marshville Town Hall 

118 East Union Street – Marshville, NC 28103 



 

 

 

 

In Attendance: Mayor Larry Smith, Mayor Pro-tem Ernestine Staton; Council Members 
Monaca Marshall, Stephen Passarelli, Gary Huntley, and Paulette Blakeney 
 
Staff Attendance: Town Manager Franklin Deese, Town Attorney Bobby Griffin, and Town 
Clerk Ashlie Vincent 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
 

Call to Order/Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Smith called the meeting to order. 
Member Huntley gave the invocation. All shared the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Public Comments: No Public Comments. 
 
Adoption of Agenda: 
Motion: Manager Deese suggested a reordering of the agenda: move items 8 and 9 to items 5 
and 6, audit presentation to item 7, discussion of audit to item 8, and pavement presentation to 
item 9.  The motion to amend the agenda was made by Mayor Pro-tem Staton and seconded by 
Member Passarelli—all ayes. 
 
Consent Agenda: 
Motion: The motion to adopt the consent agenda was made by Member Huntley and seconded 
by Member Marshall—all ayes.  
 
Christmas Storefront Winner Presentation: 
Lakeysha Medlin and the Community Strong Team presented awards to the 2023 Best 
Christmas-Themed Storefront winner, Pink Dahlia.  
 
Christmas Tree Winner Presentation: 
Lakeysha Medlin and the Community Strong Team presented awards to the winners of the 
following: 

• 2023 Best Overall Tree: Camelia Room 
• 2023 Most Creative Tree: Christ Bible Teaching Center Childcare 
• 2023 Most Unique: Candle Factory 

 
 
 

Town of Marshville 
Town Council Regular Meeting 

January 02, 2024, 7 PM 
Marshville Town Hall 

118 East Union Street – Marshville, NC 28103 



2023 Audit Presentation: 
Eddie Carrick gave a presentation about the 2023 Audit. Hard copies of the audit will be mailed 
to the Finance Office Richard Dixon and distributed to the council members later. A PDF version 
is available. There was a brief discussion of having a special meeting to adopt the audit to allow 
time for the council to look over the audit. The proposed date is January 16th before the work 
session. 
 
Pavement Condition Survey Presentation: 
Steve Lander from WithersRavanel gave the council a presentation on their completed pavement 
condition survey. The council discussed the results of the survey. Member Passarelli suggested 
looking for possible funding to help with repairs. Manager Deese was directed to bring the top 
ten worst roads to the next meeting to discuss. Mayor Pro-tem Staton suggested setting a date for 
a visionary meeting.  
 
Manager’s Comments: 

• City Vision Conference: A reminder to the council member about the upcoming event 
and who is interested in attending.  

• NC Turnpike Study: a revenue impact study will be done for the possible expansion of 
the bypass. 

• Econ Dev Study Kickoff Meeting on Thursday 
Council Comments: 

• Paulette Blakeney: Happy to see everyone and hopes everyone has a great year. 
• Gary Huntley: Happy to see everyone and looks forward to 2024. 
• Stephen Passarelli: He congratulated the winners of the awards presented. He thanked 

everyone for their participation in the Downtown Christmas trees. 
• Monaca Marshall: New year, new idea. Be positive. 
• Ernestine Staton: Happy to see people getting involved. A reminder for MLK Parade is 

coming up. Manager Deese said he would reach out and get information. 
Mayor’s Comments: 

• Tuesday, Jan 16th Special Meeting and Work Session 
• Encourage council members to propose topics for the agendas. 
• Planning Board agenda to be sent to council members. 

 
Adjournment: 
Motion: The motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Mayor Pro-tem Staton and seconded 
by Member Marshall—all ayes. 
 
 

 

 

 



Approved this ____ day of February 2024. 

 

 

         _____________________________ 
        Larry B. Smith, Jr., Mayor 

ATTEST 

 

_____________________________ 

Ashlie Vincent, Town Clerk 

 



 

 

 

 

In Attendance: Mayor Larry Smith, Mayor Pro-tem Staton; Council Members Stephen 
Passarelli, Gary Huntley, Paulette Blakeney 
 
Absent: Council Member Monaca Marshall and Mayor Pro-tem Ernestine Staton 
 
Staff Attendance: Town Manager Franklin Deese and Deputy Clerk Ann Sutton 
 

Special Meeting Minutes 
 
 

Call to Order/Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance: Mayor Smith called the meeting to order. 
Member Huntley gave the invocation. All shared the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
2023 Audit: 
Mayor Smith stated that the town had received a clean audit from Mr. Carrick. PDF versions 
were sent to the council members to review before the meeting. Hard copies were handed out at 
the meeting. 
 
Motion: The motion to approve the audit was made by Member Blakeney and seconded by 
Member Huntley—all ayes. 
 
2023 Water Response Plan: 
Manager Deese stated the plan presented to the council was an updated version that needs to be 
adopted.  
 
Motion: The motion to adopt the 2023 Water Response Plan was made by Member Huntley and 
seconded by Member Passarelli—all ayes. 
 
Adjournment:  
Motion: The motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Member Huntley and seconded by 
Member Blakeney—all ayes. 
 
 

 

 

Town of Marshville 
Town Council Special Meeting 

January 16, 2024, 7 PM 
Marshville Town Hall 

118 East Union Street – Marshville, NC 28103 



Approved this ____ day of February 2024. 

 

 

         _____________________________  
       Larry B. Smith, Jr., Mayor 

ATTEST 

 

_____________________________ 

Ashlie Vincent, Town Clerk 

 



 

 

 

 

In Attendance: Mayor Larry Smith, Mayor Pro-tem Staton; Council Members Stephen 
Passarelli, Gary Huntley, Paulette Blakeney 
 
Absent: Council Member Monaca Marshall and Mayor Pro-tem Ernestine Staton 
 
Staff Attendance: Town Manager Franklin Deese, Deputy Clerk Ann Sutton, Parks and Rec 
Director Allen Jackson, and Police Chief Matt Tarlton 
 

Work Session Minutes 
 
 

Public Comments:  
Linda Robinson: 
 
Mrs. Robinson came before the council to announce her intention to run for School Board at 
Large in March and November. She gave a brief background of her professional and academic 
credentials.  
 
Adoption of Agenda: 
Motion: The motion to adopt the agenda was made by Member Huntley and seconded by 
Member Blakeney—all ayes. 
 
Colliers Pier and Sidewalk Project Presentation: 
Ian W. – Ian W. gave the council a presentation on preliminary plans for the pier project.  
 
Mayor Smith asked about the cost of the project. Ian. W replied the pier project estimate is 
$400,000 with a 10% contingency. A true estimate will be provided when the final bid 
documents are completed. Member Passarelli asked about the longevity of the pier. Ian. W stated 
the pier could potentially last 50 years with minimal maintenance and little to no cost.  
 
Member Blakeney asked if there was a warranty available. Ian W. stated there is a possibility for 
a one-year contracted maintenance bond for the lumber. Mayor Smith asked if there were any 
alternative materials or designs. Ian W. replied that the timber system is the cheapest option, and 
the materials for the decking are relatively the same. This is the most economical option.  
 

Town of Marshville 
Town Council Work Session 

January 16, 2024, 7 PM 
Marshville Town Hall 

118 East Union Street – Marshville, NC 28103 



Mayor Smith commented the bidding process is not a commitment. Manager Deese stated the 
town has a matching grant from PARTF for 400,000. Once the price is set, he will reach out to 
businesses interested in helping. 
 
 
Chris G. – Chris G. gave the council a presentation on the preliminary plans for the sidewalk 
project.  
 
The project will entail removing the diagonal parking, replacing it with parallel parking, and 
increasing the sidewalk by seven feet. Additional features can be added to improve the 
functionality and appearance of the sidewalk—the option to add greenery, electricity availability 
for inground lights, ornamental lights, etc. Mayor Smith asked for three breakdowns for the plan, 
ranging from good, better, and best. Manager Deese said progress is being made with the land 
swap and that the final details are being taken care of.   
 
Update on Projects: 
Allen Jackson: Lake Update 
 
Parks and Rec Director Jackson reported on the progress of the lake project. So far, in phase one, 
they have completed their one-year inspection, septic system, water boring underground, and 
installation of the playground equipment. The project will need to be broken down into more 
phases as funding has been challenging to obtain. 
 
Manager Deese showcased the site plan submitted to PARTF to the council at the request of 
Member Passarelli. Mayor Smith suggested to begin thinking about policies and management for 
the lake.  
 
 
Matt Tarlton: Booster Pump and Fire Hydrant Update 
 
Police Chief Tarlton reported on the progress of the booster pump station. There will be two 
pumps, one active and another for backup. It could save the town close to 2 million gallons of 
water. The pump station will be on an automatic system, allowing for better water pressure.  
Completion of the project timeframe is projected around May or June of 2024. 
 
He reported that nine fire hydrants have been ordered, and two hydrants have been installed. 
Depending on the decisions made for the sidewalk project, they will hold off on replacing the 
fire hydrant on Main Street. There are twenty-two non-working hydrants, and about fifteen to 
twenty are hard to turn on and off.  
 
Pavement Study Discussion: 
Manager Deese presented the council with the list of the town-owned streets sorted from worst 
condition to best from the pavement study.  



 
Manager’s Comments: 
Manager Deese told the council that the town had received the 2nd distribution check from the 
ABC Board for $20,264.50. They also submitted the ALE check for $2,490.43 and the Law 
Enforcement check for $1,778.82. 
 
Member Passarelli said the ABC Board recommends more training for the ALE officer as the 
town grows. 
 
Council Comments: 
• Paulette Blakeney: She enjoyed the MLK Parade.  
• Gary Huntley: Thanked the public for coming out. He congratulated Matt Tarlton on his 

upcoming retirement. He thanked the police department for their work. 
• Stephen Passarelli: Thanked the public for coming out. He commented if anyone had 

questions, to be sure to reach out. He asked Manager Deese if the Powell Bill funds could be 
used for fire hydrants. Manager Deese stated the funds can only be used for town streets. 

 
Mayor’s Comments: 
The mayor's office hours are from 3 to 6 on meeting nights. 
 
Adjournment: 
Motion: The motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Member Huntley and seconded by 
Member Passarelli—all ayes. 
 
Approved this ____ day of February 2024. 

 

 

         _____________________________  
       Larry B. Smith, Jr., Mayor 

ATTEST 

 

_____________________________ 

Ashlie Vincent, Town Clerk 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

TM 

Marshville Procurement Policy for Funds  

Received From Federal or State Agencies 
 

I. Purpose 

 

The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines that meet or exceed the procurement   

requirements for purchases of goods (apparatus, supplies, materials, and equipment), 

services, and construction or repair projects when federal funds are being used in whole or in 

part to pay for the cost of the contract. To the extent that other sections of procurement 
policies and procedures adopted by the Town of Marshville are more restrictive that those 

contained in this policy, local policies and procedures shall be followed. 

 
II.   Policy 

 

A. Application of Policy.  This policy applies to contracts for purchases, services, and 
construction or repair work funded with federal financial assistance (direct or 
reimbursed). The requirements of this Policy also apply to any subrecipient of the funds. 
 

All federally funded projects, loans, grants, and sub-grants, whether funded in part or 
wholly, are subject to the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 

Audit Requirements for federal awards (Uniform Guidance) codified at 2 C.F.R. Part 200 

unless otherwise directed in writing by the federal agency or state pass-through agency 

that awarded the funds.   

 

B. Compliance with Federal Law.  All procurement activities involving the expenditure of 
federal funds must be conducted in compliance with the Procurement Standards codified 
in 2 C.F.R. § 200.317 through § 200-326 unless otherwise directed in writing by the federal 
agency or state pass-through agency that awarded the funds.  The town of Marshville will 
follow all applicable local, state, and federal procurement requirements when expending 
federal funds.  Should the Town of Marshville have more stringent requirements, the 
most restrictive requirement shall apply so long as it is consistent with state and federal 
law.  

 

C. Contract Award.  All contracts shall be awarded only to the lowest responsive responsible 
bidder possessing the ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of 
the contract.  



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

TM 

D. No Evasion.  No contract may be divided to bring the cost under bid thresholds or to 
evade any requirements under this Policy or state and federal law.  
 

E. Contract Requirements.  All contracts paid for in whole or in part with federal funds shall 
be in writing. The written contract must include or incorporate by reference the 
provisions required under 2 C.F.R § 200.326 and as provided for under 2 C.F.R. Part 200, 
Appendix II. 
 

F. Contractors’ Conflict of Interest.  Designers, suppliers, and contractors that assist in the 
development or drafting of specifications, requirements, statements of work, invitation 
for bids or requests for proposals shall be excluded from competing for such 
requirements. 

 

G. Approval and Modification. The administrative procedures contained in this Policy are 
administrative and may be changed as necessary at the staff level to comply with state 
and federal law. 
 
 

III.   General Procurement Standards and Procedures: 

 

A. Necessity.  Purchases must be necessary to perform the scope of work and must avoid 
acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative items. The Purchasing Department and/or the 
Requesting Department should check with the federal surplus property agency prior to 
buying new items when feasible and less expensive.  Strategic sourcing should be 
considered with other departments and/or agencies who have similar needs to 
consolidate procurements and services to obtain better pricing. 

 

B. Clear Specifications.  All solicitations must incorporate a clear and accurate description of 
the technical requirements for the materials, products, or services to be procured, and 
shall include all other requirements which bidders must fulfill and all other factors to be 
used in evaluating bids or proposals.  Technical requirements must not contain features 
that restrict competition. 
 

C. Notice of Federal Funding.  All bid solicitations must acknowledge the use of federal 
funding for the contract. In addition, all prospective bidders or offerors must acknowledge 
that funding is contingent upon compliance with all terms and conditions of the funding 
award.  
 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

TM 

D. Compliance by Contractors.  All solicitations shall inform prospective contractors that 
they must comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, executive orders, and 
terms and conditions of the funding award.  
 

E. Fixed Price.  Solicitations must state that bidders shall submit bids on a fixed price basis 
and that the contract shall be awarded on this basis unless otherwise provided for in this 
Policy.  Cost plus percentage of cost contracts are prohibited. Time and materials 
contracts are prohibited in most circumstances.  Time and materials contracts will not be 
used unless no other form of contract is suitable and the contract includes a “Not to 
Exceed” amount.  A time and materials contract shall not be awarded without express 
written permission of the federal agency or state pass-through agency that awarded the 
funds. 
 

F. Use of Brand Names.  When possible, performance or functional specifications are 
preferred to allow for more competition leaving the determination of how to reach the 
required result to the contractor. Brand names may be used only when it is impractical or 
uneconomical to write a clear and accurate description of the requirement(s). When a 
brand name is listed, it is used as reference only and “or equal” must be included in the 
description. 
 

G. Lease versus Purchase.  Under certain circumstances, it may be necessary to perform an 
analysis of lease versus purchase alternatives to determine the most economical 
approach. 
 

H. Dividing Contract for M/WBE Participation.  If economically feasible, procurements may 
be divided into smaller components to allow maximum participation of small and minority 
businesses and women business enterprises.  The procurement cannot be divided to bring 
the cost under bid thresholds or to evade any requirements under this Policy.  
 

I. Documentation.  Documentation must be maintained by the Purchasing Department 
and/or the Requesting Department detailing the history of all procurements.  The 
documentation should include the procurement method used, contract type, basis for 
contractor selection, price, sources solicited, public notices, cost analysis, bid documents, 
addenda, amendments, contractor’s responsiveness, notice of award, copies of notices to 
unsuccessful bidders or offerors, record of protests or disputes, bond documents, notice 
to proceed, purchase order, and contract.  All documentation relating to the award of any 
contract must be made available to the granting agency upon request.  
 

J. Cost Estimate.  For all procurements costing $250,000 or more, the Purchasing 
Department and/or Requesting Department shall develop an estimate of the cost of the 
procurement prior to soliciting bids.  Cost estimates may be developed by reviewing prior 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

TM 

contract costs, online review of similar products or services, or other means by which a 
good faith cost estimate may be obtained.  Cost estimates for construction and repair 
contracts may be developed by the project designer. 
 

K. Contract Requirements.  The Requesting Department must prepare a written contract 
incorporating the provisions referenced in Section II.C of this Policy.   

L. Debarment.  No contract shall be awarded to a contractor included on the federally 
debarred bidder’s list. 
 

M. Contractor Oversight.  The Requesting Department receiving the federal funding must 
maintain oversight of the contract to ensure that contractor is performing in accordance 
with the contract terms, conditions, and specifications.   

 

N. Open Competition.  Solicitations shall be prepared in a way to be fair and provide open 
competition.  The procurement process shall not restrict competition by imposing 
unreasonable requirements on bidders, including but not limited to unnecessary supplier 
experience, excessive or unnecessary bonding, specifying a brand name without allowing 
for “or equal” products, or other unnecessary requirements that have the effect of 
restricting competition. 
 

O. Geographic Preference.  No contract shall be awarded on the basis of a geographic 
preference. 

 

 

IV.   Specific Procurement Procedures   

 

A. Service Contracts (except for A/E professional services) and Purchase Contracts costing 
less than $10,000 shall be procured using the Uniform Guidance “micro-purchase” 
procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(a)) as follows: 

1. The contract may be awarded without soliciting pricing or bids if the price of the 
goods or services is considered to be fair and reasonable. 

2. To the extent practicable, purchases must be distributed among qualified 
suppliers. 

 

B. Service Contracts (except for A/E professional services) and Purchase Contracts costing 
$10,000 up to $90,000 shall be procured using the Uniform Guidance “small purchase” 
procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(b)) as follows: 

1. Obtain price or rate quotes from an “adequate number” of qualified sources (a 
federal grantor agency might issue guidance interpreting “adequate number,” so 
the Requesting Department should review the terms and conditions of the grant 
award documents to confirm whether specific guidance has been issued). 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

TM 

2. Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers 
as required under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

3. Cost or price analysis is not required prior to soliciting bids. 
4. Award the contract on a fixed-price basis (a not-to-exceed basis is permissible for 

service contracts where obtaining a fixed price is not feasible). 
5. Award the contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder. 
 

C. Service Contracts (except for A/E professional services) and Purchase Contracts costing 
$90,000 and above shall be procured using a combination of the most restrictive 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance “sealed bid” procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(c)) and 
state formal bidding procedures (G.S. 143-129) as follows: 

1. Cost or price analysis is required prior to soliciting bids. 
2. Complete specifications or purchase description must be made available to all 

bidders. 
3. The bid must be formally advertised in a newspaper of general circulation for at 

least seven full days between the date of the advertisement and the date of the 
public bid opening.  Electronic-only advertising must be authorized by the 
governing board.  The advertisement must state the date, time, and location of 
the public bid opening, indicate where specifications may be obtained, and 
reserve to the governing board the right to reject any or all bids only for “sound 
documented reasons.”  

4. Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers 
as required under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

5. Open bids at the public bid opening on the date, time, and at the location noticed 
in the public advertisement.  All bids must be submitted sealed.  A minimum of 2 
bids must be received in order to open all bids. 

6. Award the contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder on a fixed-price 
basis. Governing board approval is required for purchase contracts unless the 
governing board has delegated award authority to an individual official or 
employee.  Any and all bids may be rejected only for “sound documented 
reasons.” 

 

D. Service Contracts (except for A/E professional services) costing $250,000 and above may 
be procured using the Uniform Guidance “competitive proposal” procedure (2 C.F.R. § 
200.320(d)) when the “sealed bid” procedure is not appropriate for the particular type of 
service being sought.  The procedures are as follows: 

1. A Request for Proposals (RFP) must be publicly advertised. Formal advertisement 
in a newspaper is not required so long as the method of advertisement will solicit 
proposals from an “adequate number” of qualified firms. 

2. Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers 
as provided under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

3. Identify evaluation criteria and relative importance of each criteria (criteria 
weight) in the RFP. 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

TM 

4. Consider all responses to the publicized RFP to the maximum extent practical. 
5. Must have a written method for conducting technical evaluations of proposals and 

selecting the winning firm. 
6. Award the contract to the responsible firm with most advantageous proposal 

taking into account price and other factors identified in the RFP.  Governing board 
approval is not required. 

7. Award the contract on a fixed-price or cost-reimbursement basis. 
 

E. Construction and repair contracts costing less than $10,000 shall be procured using the 
Uniform Guidance “micro-purchase” procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(a)) as follows: 

1. The contract may be awarded without soliciting pricing or bids if the price of the 
goods or services is considered to be fair and reasonable. 

2. To the extent practicable, contracts must be distributed among qualified 
suppliers. 

 

F. Construction and repair contracts costing $10,000 up to $250,000 shall be procured 
using the Uniform Guidance “small purchase” procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(b)) as 
follows: 

1. Obtain price or rate quotes from an “adequate number” of qualified sources (a 
federal grantor agency might issue guidance interpreting “adequate number,” so 
the requesting department should review the terms and conditions of the grant 
award documents to confirm whether specific guidance has been issued). 

2. Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers 
as required under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

3. Cost or price analysis is not required prior to soliciting bids, although price 
estimates may be provided by the project designer. 

4. Award the contract on a fixed-price or not-to-exceed basis. 
5. Award the contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder.  Governing 

board approval is not required. 
 

G. Construction and repair contracts costing $250,000 up to $500,000 shall be procured 
using the Uniform Guidance “sealed bid” procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(c)) as follows: 

1. Cost or price analysis is required prior to soliciting bids (this cost estimate may be 
provided by the project designer). 

2. Complete specifications must be made available to all bidders. 
3. Publicly advertise the bid solicitation for a period of time sufficient to give bidders 

notice of opportunity to submit bids (formal advertisement in a newspaper is not 
required so long as other means of advertising will provide sufficient notice of the 
opportunity to bid).  The advertisement must state the date, time, and location of 
the public bid opening, and indicate where specifications may be obtained. 

4. Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers 
as provided under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

TM 

5. Open the bids at the public bid opening on the date, time, and at the location 
noticed in the public advertisement. All bids must be submitted sealed. A 
minimum of 2 bids must be received in order to open all bids. 

6. A 5% bid bond is required of all bidders.  Performance and payment bonds of 100% 
of the contract price is required of the winning bidder. 

7. Award the contract on a firm fixed-price basis. 
8. Award the contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder. Governing board 

approval is not required.  Any and all bids may be rejected only for “sound 
documented reasons.” 

 

H. Construction and repair contracts costing $500,000 and above shall be procured using a  
combination of the most restrictive requirements of the Uniform Guidance “sealed bid” 
procedure (2 C.F.R. § 200.320(c)) and state formal bidding procedures (G.S. 143-129) as 
follows: 

1. Cost or price analysis is required prior to soliciting bids (this cost estimate should 
be provided by the project designer). 

2. Complete specifications must be made available to all bidders. 
3. Formally advertise the bid in a newspaper of general circulation for at least seven 

full days between the date of the advertisement and the date of the public bid 
opening.  Electronic-only advertising must be authorized by the governing board.  
The advertisement must state the date, time, and location of the public bid 
opening, indicate where specifications may be obtained, and reserve to the 
governing board the right to reject any or all bids only for “sound documented 
reasons.”   

4. Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers 
as provided under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

5. Open the bids at the public bid opening on the date, time, and at the location 
noticed in the public advertisement. All bids must be submitted sealed and in 
paper form.  A minimum of 3 bids must be received in order to open all bids. 

6. A 5% bid bond is required of all bidders (a bid that does not include a bid bond 
cannot be counted toward the 3-bid minimum requirement).  Performance and 
payment bonds of 100% of the contract price is required of the winning bidder. 

7. Award the contract on a firm fixed-price basis. 
8. Award the contract to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder.  Governing 

board approval is required and cannot be delegated. The governing board may 
reject and all bids only for “sound documented reasons.” 

 

I. Construction or repair contracts involving a building costing $300,000 and above must 
comply with the following additional requirements under state law: 

1. Formal HUB (historically underutilized business) participation required under G.S. 
143-128.2, including local government outreach efforts and bidder good faith 
efforts, shall apply.  



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

TM 

2. Separate specifications shall be drawn for the HVAC, electrical, plumbing, and 
general construction work as required under G.S. 143-128(a). 

3. The project shall be bid using a statutorily authorized bidding method (separate-
prime, single-prime, or dual bidding) as required under G.S. 143-129(a1). 

 

J. Contracts for Architectural and Engineering Services costing under $250,000 shall be 
procured using the state “Mini-Brooks Act” requirements (G.S. 143-64.31) as follows: 

1. Issue a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to solicit qualifications from qualified 
firms (formal advertisement in a newspaper is not required).  Price (other than 
unit cost) shall not be solicited in the RFQ. 

2. Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers 
as provided for under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

3. Evaluate the qualifications of respondents based on the evaluation criteria 
developed by the Purchasing Department and/or Requesting Department. 

4. Rank respondents based on qualifications and select the best qualified firm. Price 
cannot be a factor in the evaluation. Preference may be given to in-state (but not 
local) firms. 

5. Negotiate fair and reasonable compensation with the best qualified firm.  If 
negotiations are not successfully, repeat negotiations with the second-best 
qualified firm. 

6. Award the contract to best qualified firm with whom fair and reasonable 
compensation has been successfully negotiated.  Governing board approval is not 
required. 

 

K. Contracts for Architectural and Engineering Services costing $250,000 or more shall be 
procured using the Uniform Guidance “competitive proposal” procedure (2 C.F.R. § 
200.320(d)(5)) as follows: 

1. publicly advertise a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to solicit qualifications from 
qualified firms (formal advertisement in a newspaper is not required).  Price (other 
than unit cost) shall not be solicited in the RFQ. 

2. Take affirmative steps to solicit price quotes from M/WBE vendors and suppliers 
as provided under 2 C.F.R. § 200.321. 

3. Identify the evaluation criteria and relative importance of each criteria (the 
criteria weight) in the RFQ. 

4. Proposals must be solicited from an “adequate number of qualified sources” (an 
individual federal grantor agency may issue guidance interpreting “adequate 
number”). 

5. Must have a written method for conducting technical evaluations of proposals and 
selecting the best qualified firm. 

6. Consider all responses to the publicized RFQ to the maximum extent practical. 
7. Evaluate qualifications of respondents to rank respondents and select the most 

qualified firm. Preference may be given to in-state (but not local) firms provided 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

TM 

that granting the preference leaves an appropriate number of qualified firms to 
compete for the contract given the nature and size of the project. 

8. Price cannot be a factor in the initial selection of the most qualified firm. 
9. Once the most qualified firm is selected, negotiate fair and reasonable 

compensation.  If negotiations are not successfully, repeat negotiations with the 
second-best qualified firm. 

10. Award the contract to best qualified firm with whom fair and reasonable 
compensation has been successfully negotiated.  Governing board approval is not 
required. 

 

V.   Exceptions 

 
A. Sole Source.  A contract may be awarded without competitive bidding when the item is 

available from only one source.  The Purchasing Department and/or Requesting 
Department shall document the justification for and lack of available competition for the 
item.  A sole source contract must be approved by the governing board. 

 
B. Public Exigency.  A contract may be awarded without competitive bidding when there is 

a public exigency.  A public exigency exists when there is an imminent or actual threat to 
public health, safety, and welfare, and the need for the item will not permit the delay 
resulting from a competitive bidding. 

 
C. Inadequate Competition.  A contract may be awarded without competitive bidding when 

competition is determined to be inadequate after attempts to solicit bids from a number 
of sources as required under this Policy does not result in a qualified winning bidder. 

 
D. Federal Contract.  A contract may be awarded without competitive bidding when the 

purchase is made from a federal contract available on the U.S. General Services 
Administration schedules of contracts.  

 

E. Awarding Agency Approval.  A contract may be awarded without competitive bidding 
with the express written authorization of the federal agency or state pass-through agency 
that awarded the federal funds so long as awarding the contract without competition is 
consistent with state law.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

TM 

Approved this ____ day of February 2024. 

 

 

         _____________________________  

       Larry B. Smith, Jr., Mayor 

ATTEST 

 

_____________________________ 

Ashlie Vincent, Town Clerk 

 


	2024.02.19 Work Session Agenda
	2024.01.02 Regular Meeting Minutes
	2024.01.16 Special Meeting Minutes
	2024.01.16 Work Session Minutes
	Marshville Procurement Policy for funds received from Federal or State Agencies
	Marshville Procurement Policy for Funds
	Received From Federal or State Agencies


